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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Makati Finance Corporation

3/F Mazda Makati Building

2301 Chino Roces Avenue

Barangay Magallanes, Makati City 1231

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Makati Finance Corporation

(the "Company"), which comprise the statements of financial position as at

December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2016, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2016, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whaole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRevenue Recognition (P203.65 million)
Refer to Note 9 to the financial statements.

The risk

The application of the requirement in Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 39,
Financial Instruments, to recognize revenue on loans using effective interest
method leads to complexity in the valuation of revenue recognized.

The application of effective interest method requires significant judgment by
management to determine key assumptions, in particular the expected life of
each loan and related cash flows. Any inappropriate judgment could result in a
material misstatement of revenue. There is also a risk that management may
influence the said significant judgments in order to meet market expectation.

Qur response

We tested the operating effectiveness of controls in relation to revenue
recognition, and the mathematical accuracy of the models used to calculate the
EIR. This involved recalculation of a sample loan product and EIR based upon
an extract of source data from the core lending system. We also tested the
completeness and accuracy of cash flow information included within the models.

We assessed the appropriateness of management's key assumptions used in
the recognition of revenue using the effective interest method as described in the
accounting policies by comparison against historical customer behavior and by
performing analytical procedures to assess the sensitivity of changing the chosen
rate.

Valuation of Loans and Receivables (P92.61 million)
Refer to Note 9 to the financial statements.

The risk

The Company has significant loans and receivable balances as at year end
which comprise the largest portion of the Company's total assets. There is a risk
that some of the loans and receivables may not be recoverable due to possible
inappropriate judgments on the expected future cash flows and the estimation of
the allowance and this could result to a material misstatement of the impairment
provisions on lgans.

Our response

Our audtt procedures included, among others, testing the operating effectiveness
of the Company’s controls over loans impairment process, assessing the
appropriateness of the methodology used in the computation of impairment and
evaluating whether the methodology is aligned with the provisions of the
appropriate financial reporting standard.

We tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the provisioning process,
including using Information Technology (IT) specialists within the audit team to
test the key IT controls over the systems in which the source loan data is
maintained. We also tested the extraction of source data from the core lending
systems to identify whether the data was accurate and complete.



We also evaluated the appropriateness of management's key assumptions used
in the impairment calculations for loans and receivables, including the estimation
of customer default rates and expected future cash flows for each porifolio.

This involved assessing management's tests of historical forecasting accuracy,
and reperforming a sample of these tests using independent extracts of
collections data. We also challenged the appropriateness of historical data used
to predict future collections performance by reference to internal and external
factors affecting the business. In addition, we recalculated a sample of portfolio
carrying values in accordance with the approved impairment provisioning policy
and tested the accuracy of the arrears status of loans and receivables.

Valuation of Motorcycle Inventories (P64.34 million)
Refer to Note 13 to the financial statements.

The risk

Motorcycle inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value
("NRV"). The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of inventories by considering
the ageing profile, inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price of
individual inventory items. This requires the use by the management of
significant judgments and assumptions that may result to material misstatement
if inappropriate. As such, it is identified as a key risk to focus on the audit.

We have identified the key risk to be the estimation of provision for inventories as
this involve significant management judgments and various uncertainties as a
result of customer demand and competitors actions.

Qur response
Our audit procedures in relation to management's assessment on NRV and
obsolescence of inventories included:

Understood and assessed the control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV of the
inventories and conducting periodic review on inventory obsolescence;

*  Observed inventory counts to identify whether there is any damaged or
obsolete inventory;

= Tested on a sampling basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of individual
inventory items by checking to the underlying procurement correspondence
and invoice; and

= Tested on a sampling basis, the NRV of selected inventory items, by
comparing the selling price subsequent o the year end, against the carrying
values of these individual inventories.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement),

SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2016, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC Form 20-15
(Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2016 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audits or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemnance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatemeant when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a gaing concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statemenis taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 24 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Dennis 1. llan.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.
DENNIS I. ]LAN. :
Partner

CPA License No. 089564 -
SEC Accreditation No. 1182-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2018
Tax Identification No. 161-313-405
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-28-2014
Issued September 26, 2014; valid until September 25, 2017
PTR No. 5904928MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City

April 4, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila
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To Management of Makati Finance Corporation

| have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Makati Finance
Corpordation based on information you have provided. These financial statements
comprise the statement of financial position of Makati Finance Corporation as at
December 31, 2016, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the period ended December 31, 2016, and
notes, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

| performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on
Related Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements,

| have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist in you in
the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements, including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence
and due care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information
used to compile them are your responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, | am not required
to venfy the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to
compile these financial statements. Accordingly, | do not express an audit opinion or
a review conclusion on whether these financial statements are prepared in
accordance with PFRSs.

AVELITO T. BAUTISTA

CPA No. 0099255

TIN No. 205-710-848-000

PTR No. 09208767, January 16, 2017, Dagupan City, Pangasinan
BOA Reqg. No. 4227

CDA Reg. No. 1102

BIR AN 01-004607-001-2015 (November 15, 2015 to 2018)

April 4, 2017
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Makati Finance Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, in accordance with the preseribed financial reporting framework
indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

R.G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the financial
statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to
the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of Makati Finance Corporation 1s responsible for all mformation and representations contamned
mn the annual income tax retum for the year ended December 31, 2016, Management 1s hkewisc responsible for
all information and representations contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax
Eetlurn covering the same reporting penod. Furthermore, the Management 15 responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax retumns filed for the reporting pertod, meludmg, but not limited, to the
value added tax returns, withholding tax returns, documentary stamp tax retums, and any and all other tax returns,

In this repard, the Management affirms that the attached aundited [inancial statements for the vear ended
December 31, 2016 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are m accordance with the books and
records of Makati Finance Corporation, complete and cormrect in all matenal respects. Management likewise
affirms that:

{a) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the National Internal
Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other issuances of the Depariment of Finance
and the Burcau of Internal Revenue;

{b} any disparity of figures in the submutted reports anising from the preparation of financial stalements pursuant
o Ninancial accounting standards (i.c. Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, or those applicable to Non-
Publicly Accountable Entities} and the preparation of the income lax return pursuant Lo tax accounting rules
has been reported as reconciling items and maintamed in the company’s books and records in accordance
with the requirements of Revenne Repulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issnances;

(¢) Makati Finance Corporatiorhas filed all applicable tax returns, reports and statements required to be filed
under Philippine tax laws for the reporting peniod, and all taxes and other mmpositions shown thercon to be
duc and payable have been paid for the reporting penod, except those contested in good futh,
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R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +53 (2) 894 1985

Internet www.kpmg.com.ph

Email ph-inguiry@kpmg.com._ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Makati Finance Corporation

3/F Mazda Makati Building

2301 Chino Roces Avenue

Barangay Magaillanes, Makati City 1231

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Makati Finance Corporation
(the "Company”) as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016, on which we have
rendered our report dated April 4, 2017.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, we are stating
that the said Company has eighty six (86) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or
more shares each.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

i S S

DENNIS I, ILAN
Partner ’QR%
CPA License No. 089564
SEC Accreditation No. 1182-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2018
Tax Identification No. 161-313-405
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-28-2014
Issued September 26, 2014; valid until September 25, 2017
PTR No. 5904928MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City
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NCIAL POSITION
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December 31
- =TT
o e LT N o 2006 2015
ASSETS N /l
Cash and Cash Equivalents B P97,617,641 P18,406,119
Loans and Other Receivables -/net g 849,023,273 847 784,722
Investment in an Associate 10 94,962,090 123,089,357
Property and Equipment - net 11 14,823,832 3,853,741
Investment Properties - net 12 2,604,468 2,604,468
Deferred Tax Assets - net 20 57,706,296 29,290,203
Other Assets - net _13 110,848,563 195,936,875
P1,227,586,163 P1,320,965 485
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Notes payable 14,21 P711,186,458 PB843,249.466
Accounts payable 21 15,717,783 27,970,499
Accrued expenses 15 37,550,118 28,565,011
Income tax payable 1,489,950 335,757
Retirement liability 18 1,549,370 613,221
767,493,684 800,753,954
Equity
Capital stock 17 216,462,556 209,565,483
Additional paid-in capital 5,803,922 5,803,922
Retained eamnings 233,334,355 200,796 673
Femeasurement gains on defined benefit
obligation 18 4,491,589 4,045,396
Share in other comprehensive income of an
associate e o MEEE a7
460,092,479 420,211,531

P1,227,586,163 P1,320,965,485

See Notes to the Financial Statements.




MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

__Note 2016 2015 2014
INTEREST INCOME 7,69 P203,486,415 P211417,274 P220,193,623
_INTERESTEXPENSE =~ 7 14, 21 44,983,569 44,966,237 50,571,236
NET INTEREST INCOME 164,502,346 166,451 ,{}3? 1689, 622 387
OTHER INCOME
Gain on sale of investment in
an associate 10, 21 84,634,527 - -
Service charges 5,318,829 4 575,355 1,928,561
_Miscellaneous N 19 18,644,061 15,297,738 13,664,680
TOTAL OTHER INCGME 108,587,417 19,873,083 15,593, 241
TOTAL DPERATING INCGME 273,100,263 186,324,130 185 215 628
OPERATING EXPENSES
Loss from sale and inventory
write-down of motorcycles 13 104,700,890 44 002,083 48,726,019
Salaries and employee benefits 18, 21 75,142,379 66,891,192 57,565,340
Provision for credit losses g 36,699,617 19,227,999 17,443,569
Taxes and licenses 24 30,334,036 16,496,293 16,088,488
Occupancy costs 23 19,233,030 9,434,067 6,753,016
Management and professional
fees 21 9,211,200 9,338,660 8,754,751
Travel and transportation 5,863,569 6,400,814 11,875,483
Commission 5,455,875 2,814,857 2,855 901
Depreciation and amortization 11 3,683,681 2,415,183 2517 144
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation 20 608,917 235,719 1,744 266
Amortization of software costs 13 330,328 394 958 367 646
Miscellaneous L 19 9,074,614 7,374,395 9,664,667
TOTAL OFPERATING
EXF‘ENSES 3DD 338,136 185,026 230 184 355 290
INCOME (LOSS) BEFDRE
SHARE IN NET INCOME QF
AN ASSOCIATE AND
INCOME TAX (27,237,873) 1,297,900 859,338
SHARE IN NET INCOME OF
AN ASSOCIATE a2 47,222,206 40,787,135 39,545,382
INCOME BEFORE INCOME
TAX 19,984,333 42,085,035 40,404,720
INCOME TAX BENEFIT 20 28,347,616 3,895 856 1,280,459
NET INCOME 46,331,949 ! 801 41685179
Forward - (Gt b‘, 2 =
1 N
N
\\



Years Ended December 31
Note 20186 2015 2014

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

ltems that may not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains on
defined benefit obligation, net
of deferred tax of P0.76 million,
P0.27 million and P0.50 million
in 20186, 2015 and 2014,

___respectively

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME P46,778,142  P46,915,295  P43,590,040

18,20 446,193 934404  1,904.861

BEasic/Diluted Eamings Per
Share 22 PO.21 P0.22 F0.21

See Motes to the Financial Statements,
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MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
s NolE 2016 205 2~ 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P19,984,333 P42,085,035 P40 404,720
Adjustments for:
Provision for credit losses 2] 36,699,617 19,227,999 17,443,569
Depreciation and amortization 11 3,683,681 2,415,193 2,517,144
Retirement expense 18 2,147,236 1,939,618 1,884,903
Amortization of software
costs 13 330,328 394,958 367 646
Gain on disposal of property
and equipment i1 (14,047) - -
Share in net income of an
associate 10, 21 (47,222,206)  (40,787,135)  (39,545,382)
Gain on sale of investment in
___anassociate 10,21 (84,634,527) : o
Operating income (loss) before
changes in working capital (69,025,585) 25,275,668 23,072,600
Changes in operating assets
and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Loans and other
receivables 26,061,832 (86,130,373) 121,850,256
Other assets 85,397,962 (11,853,124)  (97,155,446)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounis payable {12,252,711) 6,110,135 (26,235,757)
___ Accrued expenses e 8,985,107 1,332,025 12,610,554
Net cash provided by (used in)
operations 39,166,605 {65,265,669) 34,142 207
Incometaxespaid {1,699,178) (6,898,473) (6,356,354)
Met cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 37,467 427 (72,164,142) 27,785,853
CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment 11 (15,159,421) (557,664) (2,365,230)
Software costs 13 (346,817) (161,043) {3498,980)
Cash dividends received 10, 21 36,000,000 36,000,000 36,000,000
Proceeds from sale of:
Property and equipment 226,536 - -
_Investment in an associate 10 159,984,000 = -
Net cash provided by investing
activities 180,704,298 35,281,283 33,235,780

Forward




Years Ended December 31

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availments of notes payable
Setilement of notes payable
_ Cash dividends paid

Note 2016 2015 2014

P214,421,609 P289,046219 P79,400,000
(346,484,618) (273,879,455) (138,563,485)
17 (6897,194)  (6252,844) _ (3.465,624)

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

(138,960,203) 8,913,920

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
__BEGINNING OF YEAR

(62,629,109)

79,211,522 (27,968,929) (1,607,476)

18,406,119 46,375,048 47982524

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

§ P97,617,641 P18,406,119  P46,375,048

OPERATIONAL CASH
FLOWS FROM INTEREST

Interest received

Interest paid

P209,594,473
49,790,761

P227,133,408 P228 958,581
32,575,849 37,726,971

See Nofes fo the Financial Statements.



MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Gen eral Information

Makati Finance Corporation (the "Company”) was incorporated in the Philippines on
February 17, 1966. The Company operates as a domestic corporation engaged in
the sale of various financial products and services, catering generally to
the consumer market.

On October 21, 2015, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
approved the request of the Company to amend its Articles of Incorporation for
the extension of the corporate term for another 50 years.

The Company's principal place of business is at 3/F Mazda Makati Bldg., 2301 Chino
Roces Avenue, Makati City. Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation (AIB) owns
42.46% and 69.42% of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The Company has an ownership in AIB of 20% and 36% as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

On March 11, 2002, the Board of Directors (BOD) and stockholders approved
the offer of up to 19,560,000 shares from the Company’s unissued common stock
through initial common public offering (IPO). The application for the IPQO of
the Company was approved by the SEC and the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE),
on December 9, 2002 and November 28, 2002, respectively. The Company was
listed in the PSE under the Small and Medium Enterprise Board on January 8, 2003,
with an offer price of P1.38 per share.

2. Basis of F'reparatimi_

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with
the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs), PFRSs are based on
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). PFRSs consist of PFRSs, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PASs), and Philippine Interpretations issued by the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for retirement liability which is measured at present value of the defined
benefit liability less fair value of plan assets.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Company. All financial information has been
rounded off to the nearest peso unless otherwise indicated.

Approval of Issuance of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements of the Company were approved by the Audit
Committee, as authorized for issue by the BOD, on April 4, 2017.




5 Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to
the comparative years presented in these financial statements, and have been
applied consistently by the Company, except for the changes in accounting policies
as explained below.

Adoption of MNew or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards =and
Interpretations
The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards and

interpretations starting January 1, 2016 and accordingly, changed its accounting
policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption of these amendments to
standards and interpretations did not have any significant impact on the Company's
financial statements.

= Clarfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
(Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38, Intangible
Assefs). The amendments to PAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that the
use of revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are ‘highly
correlated,’ or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue.

The amendments to PAS 16 explicitly state that revenue-based methods of
depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and equipment. This is because
such methods reflect factors other than the consumption of economic benefits
embodied in the asset - e.g., changes in sales volumes and prices.

= Annual Improvements fo PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle. This cycle of improvements
contains amendments to four standards, none of which are expected to have
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

s  Changes in method for disposal (Amendment to PFRS 5, Non-current Assefs
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations). PFRS 5 is amended to clarify
that:

- If an entity changes the method of disposal of an asset (or disposal
group) - ie., reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) from held-for-
distribution to owners to held-for-sale (or vice versa) without any time
lag - then the change in classification is considered a continuation of the
original plan of disposal and the entity continues to apply held-for-
distribution or held-for-sale accounting. At the time of the change in
method, the entity measures the carrying amount of the asset
(or disposal group) and recognizes any write-down (impairment loss) or
subsequent increase in the fair value less costs fo sell/distribute of the
asset (or disposal group): and

- if an entity determines that an asset (or disposal group) no longer meets
the criteria to be classified as held-for-distribution, then it ceases held-for-
distribution accounting in the same way as it would cease held-for-sale
accounting.

Any change in method of disposal or distribution does not, in itself, extend
the period in which a sale has to be completed.



‘Continuing involvement’ for servicing contracts (Amendment to PFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures). PFRS 7 is amended to clarify when
servicing arrangements are in the scope of its disclosure requiremants on
continuing invelvement in transferred financial assets in cases when they are
derecognized in their entirety. A serviceris  deemed {o have continuing
involvement if it has an interest in the future performance of the transferred
asset - e.g., if the servicing fee is dependent on the amount or timing of the
cash flows collected from the transferred financial asset however, the
collection and remittance of cash flows from the transferred financial asset to
the transferee is not, in itself, sufficient to be considered ‘continuing
involvement.’

Offsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial statements (Amendment
to PFRS 7). PFRS 7 is also amended to clarify that the additional disclosures
required by Disclosures: Offsefting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(Amendments fo PFRS 7) are not specifically required for inclusion in
condensed interim financial statements for all interim periods; however, they
are required if the general requirements of FPAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting require their inclusion.

Discount rate in a regional market shanng the same cumency - e.q., the
Eurozone (Amendment to PAS 19, Employee Benefits). The amendment to
PAS 19 clarifies that high-quality corporate bonds or government bonds used
in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency in
which the benefits are to be paid. Consequently, the depth of the market for
high-quality corporate bonds should be assessed at the currency level and
not at the country level.

Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’
(Amendment fo PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting). PAS 34 is amended to
clarify that certain disclosures, if they are not included in the notes to interim
financial statements, may be disclosed “elsewhere in the interim financial
report’ - i.e., incorporated by cross-reference from the interim financial
statements to another part of the interim financial report (e.g., management
commentary or risk report). The interim financial report is incomplete if the
interim  financial statements and any disclosure incorporated by
cross-reference are not made available fo users of the interim financial
statements on the same terms and at the same time.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments fo PAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Stafements) addresses some concemns expressed about existing presentation
and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities are able to use judgment

when applying PAS 1. The amendments clanify that:

Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing
immaterial information.

Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

The list of line items to be presented in the statements of financial position
and statements of comprehensive income can be disaggregated and
aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements.



= An entity’s share of other comprehensive income (OCI) of equity-accounted
associates and joint ventures should be presented in aggregate as single line
items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or
loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are accrued using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts the estirmated future
cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability, When calculating the EIR, the Company
estimates the future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees, transaction costs, and all other discounts
or premiums that are an integral part of the EIR. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability.

Unearned discount is recognized as income over the terms of the financial asset
using the effective interest method.

Interest from bank deposit accounts is recognized as the interest is earned. Interest
income is presented net of tax unless final tax is deemed significant.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The Company
assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or agent.
The Company has concluded that it is acling as a principal on all of its revenue
arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:

Service Charges
Service charges are recognized only upon collection or accrued when there is
reasonable certainty as to its collectability.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment has been
established.

Miscellaneous Income
Income from other sources is recognized when earned.

Expenses

Expenses are recognized when it is probable that decrease in future economic
benefits related to decrease in an asset or an increase in liability has occurred and
that the decrease in economic benefits can be measured reliably.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash in banks and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less from dates of
placement and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are accounted for as follows:

Recognition

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of
financial position when it becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognized on the settlement date.

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial
instruments includes transaction costs that are attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and Measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assefs, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, and loans and receivables. Financial
liabiliies are classified into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liahilities.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired
and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines
the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no HTM investments, AFS
financial assets and financial assets and liabilities at FVPL.

The measurement of financial instruments subsequent to initial recognition is
described below:

a. Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL consist of debt and private equity securities purchased
and held principally with the intention of selling them in the near term. These
securities are carried at fair market value; realized and unrealized gains and
losses on these instruments are recognized in profit or loss of the Company.
Cuoted market prices, when available, are used to determine the fair value of
these financial instruments. Interest earned is recorded in 'Interest Income while
dividend income is recorded in 'Other Income' in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income according to the terms of the coniract, or when the right
of payment has been established.

b. AFS Financial Assets
AFS financial assefs are those non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as such or are not classified as financial assets at FVPL,
HTM investments or loans and receivables. These are purchased and held
indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in
market conditions.



After initial measurement, any AFS financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Any unrealized gains or losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS
financial assets are excluded from reported income and are reported as ‘net
unrealized loss on AFS financial assets in OCL.

When the AFS financial assets are disposed, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCIl is recognized in profit or loss.

HTM Investments

HTM investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity, and which are not designated as financial assets at FVPL or as AFS
financial assets,

After initial measurement, HTM investments are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment losses. A sale or
reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of HTM investments would
result in the reclassification of all HTM investments as AFS financial assets, and
would prevent the Company from classifying investment securities as HTM for
the current and the following two (2) financial years.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active
market and are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term
resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets or financial assets at
FVPL.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are camied at amortized cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for impairment losses, if any.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization is
included in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment of such loans and
receivables are recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are classified as non-performing or considered impaired
when the principal is past due, or when in the opinion of management, collection
of interest and principal is doubtful. These receivables will not be reclassified as
performing until interest and principal payments are brought current or
the receivables are restructured and future payments appear assured.,

Client's equity represents the amount withheld by the Company as protection
against customer returns and allowances and other special adjustments, which is
equivalent to 30% of the receivables factored. This is diminished proportionately
as the receivables from factoring are collected.

Uneamed interest income is shown as a deduction from ‘Loans and receivables -
net’ in the staterments of financial position.

Included in this category are ‘Cash and cash equivalents’, ‘Loans and other
receivables - net’ and ‘Security deposits’ presented under 'Other assets — net’ in
the statements of financial position.



e. Financial Liabilities at FVPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or
15 designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at FVPL are
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expensse, are
recognized in profit or loss.

r.  Other Financial Liabilities

This category periains to financial liabilities not designated at FVPL where the
substance of the contractual arrangements results in the Company having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. After initial
measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral
part of the EIR.

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of
the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

included in this category are ‘Notes payable’, ‘Accounts payable’ and ‘Accrued
expenses (excluding payable to government).

Amortized Cost Measurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
methed of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity
amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair Value Measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which
the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using
the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as
active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation
techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. The chosen waluation technigque incorporates all of
the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.



The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair
value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

= Level 1: Fair value measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

= Llevel 2: Fair value measured using inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset and liability, either directly of (i.e.,
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

= Level 3: Fair value measured using inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement
is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy, when applicable, are recognized at the end of the reporting
period which the change has occurrad.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is
normally the transaction price - i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or
received. If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially
measurad at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that the difference is
recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or
the transaction is closed out.

Portiolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk
and credit risk that are managed by the Company on the basis of the net exposure to
gither market or credit risk are measured on the basis of a price that would be
received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for a
particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to
the individual assets and hiabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustments of
each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

Impairment of Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence
that financial assets not carried at FVPL are impaired. A financial asset is impaired
when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash
flows on the asset that can be estimated reliably.

The Company considers evidence of impairment at both specific asset and collective
levels. All individually significant financial assets are assessed for specific
impairment. All significant assets found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.
Financial assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together financial assets (carried at amortized cost) with
similar credit risk characteristics.



Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can
include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default or delinguency
by a borrower, restructuring of a lean or advance by the Company on terms that it
would not ctherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter
bankruptey, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable
data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
porrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults
mn the group. In addition, for an investment in equity securities classified as
AFS financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost
is objective evidence of impairment.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses statistical modeling of
historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of
loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser
than suggested by historical modeling. Default rates, loss rates and the expected
timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to
ensure that these remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets camied at amortized cost are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets’ original EIR.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance
account against loans and advances. When a subsequent event causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss but only to the extent that the resulting carrying amount of
the asset after the reversal of impairment loss does not exceed its amortized cost at
the reversal date had no impairment loss been recognized.

Impairment losses on AFS financial assets are recognized by transferring
the cumulative loss that has been recognized in OCI to profit or loss. The amount
transferred is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal
repayment and amortization, and the current fair value, less any impaimment loss
previously recognized in profit or loss. Changes in impairment provisions attributable
to time value of money are reflected as a component of interest income.

If in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired AFS debt security increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
to the extent of the carrying amount of the debt security had no impairment loss been
recognized, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss. However,
any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired AFS debt security is
recognized in OCIL.

The Company writes off certain loans and advances and securities when these are
determined to be uncollectible.



Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

{(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired;

(b) the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third-party
under a "pass-through” arrangement; or

(c) the Company has fransferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and
either:
(i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(if) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial Liability

A financial lisbility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
with the difference in the respective carrying amounts recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal
right to set off the amounts and intend either to settle on a net basis or o realize the
asset and setlle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the
accounting standards, or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar
fransactions.

Investment in an Associate

An associate pertain to an entity over which the Company has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but has no control or joint control over those policies.
Investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment in associate is inifially recognized at cost.
The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in
the Company’s share in the net assets of the associate since acquisition date.

-10-



The statements of comprehensive income report the Company’s share of the results
of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of the investee is presented as
part of the Company's OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognized
directly in the equity of the associate, the Company recognizes its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the statements of changes in equity. Unrealized gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the associate are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on
the face of statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of
the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is
necessary to recognize an impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At each
reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence that
the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the investment in associate and its carrying value, then recognizes
the loss as net of ‘Share in net income of an associate’ in profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measures and
recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Property and Equipment
Froperty and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Initially, an item of property and equipment is measured at its cost, which comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
the location and condition for its intended use. Subsequent costs that can be
measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company. The
costs of day-to-day servicing of an asset are recognized as an expense in the period
in which these are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization is calculated using the straightline basis over
the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment, as follows:

Number of Years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5
Leasehold rights and improvements 10 or over the period of
the lease, whichever is
shorter
Transporiation equipment = 3-5

The useful lives and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed at each
reporting date to ensure that the period and method of depreciation and amortization
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from those assets.
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The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss (see
accounting pelicy on Impairment of Non-financial Assets).

When an item of property and equipment is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost
and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impaimment losses, if any, are
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement
or disposal is reflected in profit or loss.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are land held for capital appreciation or land held for currently
undetermined future use. Investment properties are measurad at cost, including
fransactions costs. An investment property acquired through an exchange
transaction is measured at fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair value of
such an asset cannot be measured in which case the investment property acquired
is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up. Subsequent to initial
recognition, depreciable investment properties are camied at cost less any
impairment in value.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change
in use evidenced by ending of owner occupation, commencement of an operating
lease to another party or ending of construction or development. Transfers are made
from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use evidenced
by commencement of owner occupation or commencement of development with a
view to sale.

Foreclosed real estate properties are classified under investment properties on
foreclosure date.

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations,
such as repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged against current
operations in the period in which the costs are incurred.

The Company estimates the useful lives of its investment properties based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. Any depreciation
for these assets is calculated on a straight - line basis using a useful life of 15 years.

Investment properties are derecognized when it has either been disposed or when it
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the derecognition of an investment property are
recognized in profit or loss in the year of derecognition.

Motorcycle Inventories

The Company recognizes motoreycle inventories at the lower of cost and net
realizable value (NRV) based on its assessment of the recoverability of
the inventories. In determining the recoverability of the inventories, management
considers whether those inventories are damaged or if the selling prices have
declined. Likewise, management also considers whether estimated costs to be
incurred to make the sale have increased. The cost of motorcycle inventories is
determined using specific identification. The excess of the cost over the NRV is
recognized as a loss from write-down of motorcycle inventories in profit or loss.
Motorcycle inventories account is presented under ‘Other asset — net in the
statements of financial position.
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Software Costs

Sofiware costs that are not an integral part of the hardware are classified as
intangible assets. This is included under “Other assets - net" account in
the statements of financial position, which includes costs incurred relative to
the development of the Company's software.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All ather expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Software asset is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated
useful life, from the date on which it is available for use. The estimated useful life of
software asset for the current and comparative periods is three to five years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
its property and equipment, investment properties and other assets (excluding
security deposits) may be impaired. When an indicator exists or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset's recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset or cash
generating unit's (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the CGU to which it belongs.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset,

An impairment loss is charged against operations in the year in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is charged against the revaluation increment of the said asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. [f that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation expense is
adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining life.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When
the shares are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par
value is credited to ‘Additional paid-in capital’ account.
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Retained Eaminas
Retained earnings represent accumulated profits or losses of the Company, net of
dividend distributions, if any, to stockholders and other capital adjustments.

Cash dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from
equity once approved by the BOD. Stock dividends are recognized as addition to
capital stock once approved by the BOD and stockholders. Dividends approved after
the reporting date are treated as an event after the reporting date.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated to Philippine peso
at the prevailing Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp closing rate at the reporting
date while foreign-currency denominated income and expenses are translated into
Philippine peso based on the weighted average rate at transaction dates. Foreign
exchange gains or losses arising from such transactions, including restatements of
foreign-currency denominated assets and liabilities, are charged against current
operations.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on
the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether
the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is
made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of
the arrangement;

b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of
the renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

¢. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a
specified asset; or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shail commence ar cease from
the date when the change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for
scenarios a, ¢, or d above; and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario b,

Company as Lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
ferm.

Company as Lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments received are recognized as an income in profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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Employee Benefits

Defined Benefit Flan

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducfing the fair value of plan
assets, if there is any.

The caleulation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in OCI . The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in ‘Salaries and employee benefits’ in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss at the earlier of the following:

* when the related restructuring costs are recognized;
» when the related termination benefits are recognized; or
»  when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs,

The Company recognized gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settiement occurs.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Shortterm employee benefils are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employees and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest which the Company incurs in connection to
borrowing of funds. These are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which
the costs are incurred.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense compnses current and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or in OCL.

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,

using tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation
purposes, the carry-forward tax benefits of the net operating loss camryover (NOLCO)
and the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate
income tax (RCIT). The amount of deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when these reverse, based on
the tax rates enacted at or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset the amounts and it intends either to setfle on a net basis or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recorded as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is
virtually ceriain.

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized in the statements of financial position but are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statements of financial position but are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow
of assets embodying economic benefits is remote.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income for the year of
the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock
rights exercised during the year, if any. The Company does not have dilutive
potential common shares,
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Segment Reporting

The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves
different markets. Financial information on business segments is presented in
MNote 7.

Events Afier the Repording Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's
financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial
statements when material. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Mew or Revised Standards. Amendments to Standards and Interpretations Not Yet
Adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are

effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2016 and have not been

applied in preparing these financial statements. Based on management's

assessment, none of these is expected fo have a significant impact on

the Company’s financial statements.

To be Adopted January 1, 2017

= Disclosure initiative (Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows),
The amendments address financial statements users' requests for improved
disclosures about an entity’s net debt relevant to understanding an entity's cash
flows. The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes
- e.g., by providing a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in
the statement of financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. When an entity first applies the
amendments, it is not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods.

» Recognition of Deferred Tax Assels for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to
PAS 12, Income Taxes). The amendments clarify that;

= the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in
the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset;

= the calculation of future taxable profit in evaluating whether sufficient taxable
profit will be available in future periods excludes tax deductions resulting
from the reversal of the deductible temporary differences:

= the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of
some of an entity's assets for more than their carrying amount if there is
sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this; and

= an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related to unrealized
losses in combination with all of its other deductible temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against income
of a specific type.
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The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. On initial application,
the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings
and other components of equity. If an entity applies the relief, it shall disclose
that fact.

To be Adopted January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes
the previously published versions of PFRS 9 that infroduced new classifications
and measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities
measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and
introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with
risk management,

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted.

The Company will assess the potential impact on its financial statements
resulting from the application of PFRS 9.

To be Adopted January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard mtmduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance shest, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were
introduced including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases
with a term of 12 months or less) and low-value items, as well as the permission
of portfolio-level accounting instead of applying the requirements to individual
leases. New estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the identification,
classification and measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to
reassess certain key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were
introduced. -

PFRS 16 is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16.
The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans
to adopt this new standard on leases on the required effective date.
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Deferral of the local implementation of Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investment in Associate: Sale or Confribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

= Sale or Coniribution of Assets befween an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments fo PFRS 10 and PAS 28). The amendments address an
inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10 and in PAS 28, in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint ventura,

The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary.

Qriginally, the amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 with early adoption permitted. However,
on January 13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the effective date of these
amendments until the |ASB has completed its broader review of the research
project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
vantures,

4. Significant A-::cnun_ti_ng Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRSs requires
the Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
Is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the periods of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements follows:

Judgments
(a) Classification of Financial Instruments

The Company classifies financial instruments, or its component parts, on initial
recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the confractual amangement and
the definitions of the instruments. The substance of a financial instrument, rather
than its legal form, governs its classification in the Company's statements of
financial position. The Company determines the classification at initial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.
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(b) Operating Leases
Company as a Lesses
The Company has entered into a contract of lease for the office space it
occupies. The Company has determined that all significant risks and rewards of
ownership on these properties are retained by the lessor (see Note 23).

Estimates

(a) Impairment of Loans and Other Receivables
The Company reviews its loans and other receivables at each reporting date to
assess whether an allowance for impairment should be recognized in profit or
loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of
allowance required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number
of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to
the allowance.

In addition to specific allowances against individually significant loans and
receivables, the Company also makes a collective impairment allowance against
exposure which, although not specifically identified as requiring a specific
allowance, has a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This takes
into consideration the length of relationship with the counterparty, credit status of
counterparty based on third party reports, and historical experience.

The Company assessed that allowance for impairment loss necessary for its
loans and receivables as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to
P92.61 million and P55.91 million, respectively (see Note 9).

The carrying value of loans and receivables amounted to P348.02 million and
P847.78 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, net of
allowance for credit losses (see Note 9).

(b) Impairment of Investment in an Associate, Property and Equipment, Investment
Properiies and Soffware Costs
The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which could
trigger an impairment review include the following:

= significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected
future operating results:

» significant changes in the manner of use of the acguired assets or
the strategy for overall business; and

= significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed
using the value in use approach. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets or, if not possible, for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not recognize impairment

on investment in an associate, property and equipment, investment properties
and software costs.
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The carrying values of investment in an associate, property and equipment,
investment properties and software costs are disclosed in Notes 10, 11, 12
and 13.

Whrite-down of Motorcycle Inventories to NRV

The Company recognizes loss on write-down of motorcycle inventories at a level
considered adequate to reflect the excess of cost of motoreycle inventories over
their NRV. NRV of inventories are assessed based on the estimated prevailing
selling prices less the estimated cost necessary to sell. Increase in the NRV will
increase the carrying amount of inventories but only to the extent of their original
acquisition cost,

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying value of motorcycle inventories
amounted to P103.18 million and P191.21 million, respectively (see Note 13).

{d) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

(&)

(7

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes at each reporting
date and reduce deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no assurance that the Company will
generate sufficient taxable income to allow all or part of deferred tax assets to be
utilized. The Company looks at its projected performance in assessing
the sufficiency of future taxable income. The amount of deferred tax assets are
disclosed in Note 20.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, Investment Properties and
Software Costs

The Company estimates the useful lives of its property and eguipment,
investment properties and software cost based on the period over which these
properties are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of
the properties are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear and technical or
commercial obsolescence on the use of these properties. It is possible that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentionad above. The estimated useful
lives are disclosed in Note 3.

Valuation of Retirement Liability

The cost of defined benefit pension plan as well as the present value of the
pension obligation was determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to
changes inthese assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date. Further details on the retirement liability are provided in Note 18.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest
rates of Philippine government bonds with extrapolated maturities corresponding
to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
country and 1s modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements.
Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future
inflation rate.
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As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the net retirement liability amounted to
P1.55 million and P0.61 million, respectively (see Note 18).

(g) Provisions and Contingencies
The Company, in the ordinary course of business, sets up appropriate provisions
for its present legal or constructive obligations, if any, in accordance with its
policies on provisions and contingencies. In recognizing and measuring
provisions, management takes risk and uncertainties into account.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not recognize provisions
nor contingencies related to legal obligations or claims.

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of
its financial instruments are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturities
of these financial assets.

Loans and Other Receivables

The camrying amounts of loans and receivables approximates the fair values due
either to the relatively shortterm maturities of these assets or the fact that
the interest rates reflect the prevailing market rates.

Notes Payable
The carrying amounts of notes payable approximate fair values as the interest rates
are repriced quarterly.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Interest Payable
The carmying amounts of accounts payable and accrued interest payable
approximate fair values due to their short-term maturities.

_E. Financial Risk Management Dhjectiva_s_;n.n-:i- FToIi-:ies ——y = -
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk,
liguidity risk and interest rate risk. There is no change in the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk Management and Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company manages
credit risk by setting limits for individual borrowers, and groups of borrowers and
industry segments. The Company also monitors credit exposures, and continually
assesses the creditworthiness of counterparties.

In addition, the Company obtains security where appropriate, and enters into
collateral arrangements with counterparties to limit the duration of exposures. Finally,
credit applications go through a process of screening using the Company's credit
standards to minimize risk.
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The Company also focuses on markets and borrowers that have a relatively better
capability to repay their loans. One example for this is the medical professional
market where most doctors are able to pay because of their higher disposable
income. Despite the systems and checks in place for the Company, there is no
guarantee that none of its existing and future clients will default on a loan. An
increase in loan defaults will have a negative effect on the Company’s profitability.

The Company's motorcycle financing business has the motorcycle itself as collateral
in case the borrower defaults on its loan. Other receivable from customers are
secured by real estate and other chattel properties.

It is the Company's policy to dispose repossessed properties in an orderly fashion
and proceeds are used to repay or reduce the outstanding claim.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to receivable from
customers as low, as its customers are located in several areas around Southemn
Luzon.

The table below shows the maximum exposure of loans and receivables after
financial effect of collateral and credit enhancements to the maximum exposure to
credit risk.

2016 T 2015
- Met Maximum
Exposurs Aftar Nat Maximum
Financial Exposuns After
Fair Value of Effect of Fair Vahme of  Financial Effect
Collatersl o Caollateral and Lollaters o of Calataral
Gross Madmum Cradit Cradit  Gross Mmdmum Cradit and Credit
___ Exposure  Enhance t _Enhancements Exposum  Enhancement  Enharcemants
Loans and Dther Recaivables
Cash and cash equivalents” FO6, 80,856 P . PaiE, 500,556 PIT 282,612 P o Pi17.262 819
Recsivabie from customars;
Coonsumer IO, 797008 TR BET 24,700, 141 805 827,773 T3T.585733 62,272,040
Servicos 1541 B5E5T2 7155357 144, 70315 1£3,857 957 5,853,008 13E, D04, 348
Dividend reconvabls - - - 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
Olher reosivablas 18,9082 T34 - 18,962,734 17,011,518 - 17,011,516
__ Secunty degosits™ 1304027 - 3amen 1,054,245 n 1054245
1,041, 520,857 P753,162,224  P28E,B588TA P 022 D 110 PT43.408 741 PITR B35 259
"Exciudding czsh on hand

“Freseniad wndsr \DMer BERals - mef’

The tables below show a comparison of the credit quality of the Company's financial
assets (net of unearned interest income and client's equity).

—
Nesthver Past Dus nor impaired __ PastDue
T Medium but mot
i HighGrade  Grade  LowGrade Empalred Impaired Toml
Leans and Other Receivables
Cash and cesh equivalents® Po6, 200458 F- P P- P- POE,800,B58
Receivabie from cusiemans:
Carsiumes 490 990,459 - 13,524,085 165,358,649 100,483 214 T70,797,008
Servioes - - 121,621,267 = 20,234 £06 151,355,672
Diwidend recesvabie “ 5 - - 3 -
Other racaivabies - - 18,582,734 - - 18,982,734
Security oaposis . - 3,384,627 - 3,384,627
_ Other iwestmants™ 2 - Lo AT - B
PEET,TH1315 FP- P157,282,794  P165,008 543 P120,715,213  P1,041,900,597
* Excludineg cath on hang

IncHides imestments i qoff sharss which is pmsented under ‘Other assats - pet’
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2015

e Heithar Past Due nor impaired Past Dua
Medern Bt ot
N High Grade Grada Lot Grage Irpaired _Impaired Total
Loans snd (qhar Receivabies
Cash and cash equivalents” PiT.282.819 P - P . P - P - P17 282,618
Recaivable from cusiomers.
Carmairner 455,352,205 1TET1L 41T 200032 Her2ama 805 B27,773
Services 5,628,125 - 116,486,753 15.570,793 TATZ245 143,857 957
Dnidend receivalia 36,000,000 - - - - 35,000,000
Other receivebies - - 17,011,516 = = 17,011,518
Security deposita - - 1,084,245 - = 1,064,245
_ Dther investments™ . ik £0,000 - = 80,003
F515,002,948 P - P152313.971 PIZ26510825 P125,305,565  P1,022124,110

= Exclidlng cash on hand
includes investmants in sl shames which is presenfed under 'Other assels - npf

The Company’s basis in grading its financial assets is as follows:

Cash in Banks
High grade pertains to cash deposited in local banks belonging to top ten (10) rank.

Cash Equivalents

High grade pertains to short term placements with AIB which have high probability of
collection, as evidenced AlB's the ability to satisfy its obligations.

Loans and Other Receivables

= High grade pertains to receivables with no default in payment and fully secured
with collateral.

= Medium grade pertains to receivables with no default in payment and partially
secured with collateral.

* Low grade periains fo receivables with no default in payment and without
security.

The analysis of receivables from customers that were past due but not impaired is as
follows:

= MG e
30-60 More thani2(

i 130Days  Days 6190 Days 91120 Days Days __Total
Cansumer PT0,240,018  P25,315422  P22,606,684 P3,442,800 P37,793,725  P165398,649
Senaces Y/ H) | | - - - - B N

PT0,240,018  P25,315422  P22.606584 P5,442,800 PI7T,793,725  P165,398,649
o 2015 e 4

J0-50 Meaore than 120
1-30 Days Days 51-80 Days 21-120 Days Days Tatal
Consumer P86,894,524  P6B,0T1,320 PZ3.533457 P13,004,335 P10,536,198 P212,939,832
Services TEE5,517 3,579,304 00770 1.136.555 588,847 13,570,793
P104,259 841 P72,550,624 F23.734,227 P14, 140 800 P11,225.043 PE26.510,825
Impairment Assessment

The Company recognizes impairment/credit losses based on the results of specific
(individual) and collective assessment of its credit exposures. Impairment has taken
place when there is a presence of known difficulties in the payment of obligation by
counterparties, infringement of the original terms of the contract has happened, or
when there is an inability to pay principal or interest overdue beyond a certain
threshold (e.g., 50 days).

These and other factors, either singly or in tandem with other factors, constitute

observable events and/or data that meet the definition of an objective evidence of
impairment.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to meet funding obligations such as the
repayment of liabilities or payment for asset purchases. The Company seeks to
manage its liquidity profile o be able to semvice its maturing debts and to finance
capital requirements. The Company maintains a level of cash on hand and in banks
deemed sufficient to finance its operations. As part of its liquidity risk management,
the Company regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. It also
continuously assesses conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue
fund-raising activities. Fund-raising activities may include bank loans and advances
from related parties.

The table summarizes the contractual maturity profile of the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities based on undiscounted contractual payments and remaining
contractual maturities.

I Contractual Maturities. -
078 = =
Carrying Upta s itG Bio 1z Wora than 3 -t
Amount Momth= __Months = Months 180 3 Years rars Tertal
Financial Asscts
Cash and cash
equivalars PAT.EI7,641  PAT.E1T.541 P - P - P P - PAT,G1T, 541
Loars and ather
racaivables.
Raoaivabla from
Cuslomars:
Cansumar TTOTET.008  18441,114 145715459 261538560 467,306,510 31965800  1.07D,B4T7842
Borvices 151,855,672 125,865,817 14,019,607 24 617,913 44152381 12,533,948 221,230 612
it recsivabias 1B,982,724 4,543 253 4,943,263 9,836,527 - - 18,773,053
Dovidand
racajvebls - - a 3 = & =
Security deposits 3,384,627 . - - - 3,334,627 3,384,627
Otier westmens* 80,000 - - p— 20,000 10,050

PLOSITITBE2  P39LS4T,835 PIE4678,353  P2B6043,400  P511,498883 P47364,465 P1,412712.825

Financial Liabilities

Melas payasle 711,186,458 B4, 475,724 82,776,724 543,933,010 240,000,000 T11,188,458
Aocounts payable 15,717,788 15,717,708 < - - - 15,717,738
_feorued interazt 11,494,105 11,184,105 s n u I 1 L 1L

738,098,351 01,388,617 B2, TTE, T4 54393300 20,000,000 - 734,098,351
Mat kquidity gap F304,619,331  P300,155,218  PB1,901,0592  (P247885601) P49 498863 P4TOE44E5  POT4.634.548

“Inclindes irvesinments in goif shares wiioh is presentad under ‘Other asssis - pat

Corachsal Maturitins

2015
Carrying Dginad 38 Bwi2 Wore than 3
Amont  Mondhs Months Montrs 1t 3 Years _Years Tedal
Finsncisl Assets
Cash and cash
Equivelans P 18,405,119 P 18,405,119 P - P - P o= P - P18,405,112
Leans and other
receivabics
Receieables from
custamers
Consumes B0B,827,772 178,295,166 150,325 828 255,700,308 535,951,046 1561534719 1,143,918, 767
Servicas 143,857,957 125,828,747 16,251,025 24 573,550 31,727,228 B 447,201 206,897,870
Qthar receivables 17011517 4325 514 4 505 514 4505 514 4,325,515 . 17,306,057
Divicand
teczivatle 26,000,000 - 55,000,000 - @ * 36,000,003
SBecurity deposits 1,004,245 - - . - 1,054,245 1,064, 245
Other investments £0,000 - — - = 20,000 BO.000

P1023 247 B8I0 PI2GESE546 P214917367 FIB4SITI0T PSTRDM4,880 PISI04G35 P1,4235,664.058

Faancal Lishililies

Notes payabis PB43 243,463 P20S1599.520 P231.318102 PF319,6356,205 PET,085,238 P - PB43,240,458
ACCOUnts peyeie 27 970,493 27 570,458 - - - - 25970459

- Acorued Ttarest 15,001,297 16,001,297 S = = I |
PEAT.2N 252 PR4EATH,TIE P23 38103 PR1SSIS 206 PAT.O95238 F - PRET 221 262

Mot liquidity gap PI36,026,343  PT7BB84830 (PIG400733) (P565874) P4B4.D1GE51 P2S204BE5 PSS AT TG

Tncluged imvsimmenls n golf shares which iF presemied under Oiher sagels - nal
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Interest Rate Risk

The profitability of the Company may be influenced by changes in the level of interest
rates. In the event that interest rates go up significantly, less people will be inclined
to avail of a loan. The Company funds its loan operations through a combination of
the operational cash flow and borrowings from related parties. Any increase in
interest rates will cause the Company to incur more expenses for every peso they
earn in interest income.

The Company follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and liabilities so as to
ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.
The interest rates on notes payable are fixed with maturity ranging from one (1) to
three (3) years.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk
The Company's exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is deemed minimal for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Sensitivity of Net Inferest Income

A principal part of the Company’s management of market risk in non-trading
portfolios is to monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income under varying
interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling). The Company aims, through its
management of market risk in non-trading portfolios, to mitigate the effect of
prospective interest rate movements which could reduce future net interest income,
while balancing the cost of such activities on the current net revenue stream.

T _Segmeﬁtnlnfannatian

Operating Segments

The Company’s operating businesses are recognized and managed separately
according to the nature of services provided and the different markets served with
each segment representing a strategic business unit. The Company derives
revenues from the following main operating business segments:

Rx Cashline Group

The Rx Cashline Group is tasked with the sales and promotion of the Rx cash line
product - loans tailored to medical professionals, and assist in the credit application,
investigation, evaluation and approval and loan collection processes,

MFC Factfors Group
The MFC Factors Group is responsible for the research of businesses that seek to
factor their receivables for extra liquidity.

MC Financing Group

The MC Finaricing Group is tasked with the sales and promotion of the MC
Financing product - loans to motorcycle buyers, and assist in the credit application,
investigation, evaluation and approval and loan collection processes.

Other Segments

This segment includes real estate-backed business loans and other segments that
provide support to its core activities.
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The Company considers ifs Management Committee as chief operating decision
maker. Management conducts weekly Management Committee mestings to monitor
the performance and conversion of each of the product lines handled. Strategies and
recommendations are formulated while operating parameters and guidelines are
developed and implemented in these weekly meetings. Product line performance is
evaluated based on how it performs versus target and versus last year's actual
figures. Another major consideration is on the analysis of risk and collectability
exposure contributed by each product line.

Segment assets are those operating assets that are employed by a segment in its
operating activities and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can be
allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.

Segment liabilities are those operating liabilities that result from the operating
activities of a segment and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise all of the assets and liabilities, measured in a
manner consistent with that shown in the statements of financial position.

The Company’s assets producing revenues are located in the Philippines (ie., one
geographical location), therefore, geographical segment information is no longer
presented, ‘

The Company does not have a single external customer from which sales revenue
generated amounted to 10% or more of the total revenues.

Financial information about operating segments follows:

HHE
1) o) _ RxCashline WFCFactos WiCFinancing  Others  Jewl
Loans and Other Receivables P112,327 760 F2T5,429,0E3 Pa04 123,721 M9, 773052 P1.211 650,627
Results of operation
Revenues
Irterazt income P21,177,29%5 PI4,280,173 P163,215,346 PE33, 601 P209 488 415
Other income _S122881 4832071 10634450 135130091 155819523
28,300,156 29,192,384 173,843,796 135,962 852 265,306,035
Expenses
Interest expense 3,852,324 L4455 548 31,007,173 ETE, 124 44,983,559
Frovizion for credit losses 8,225,600 - 26,258, 203 2,215 814 36,699,617
_ Opersting expanses 8,350,016 14,752,327 219581788 ANSS438R 00 263638819
20,427,940 24138275 276,847 164 23,848,326 345,311,705
Net operating Incoma {loss) 5,872,216 P4,%34,112 (102,957, 368) 112,115,366 19,584,333
Less: Income tax sxpense (bensft) 4229345 1498236  (B6ATHSSY) 34289354 (25347,5%6)
Met incame (lass) P1,642.871 3,495,863 [P36,522,817) PTT,E16,012 P45, 331,949
Statement of financial position
Total assots P&1,051,356 P38 327,335 PEET,E70,B18 P20,536, 534 P1.227 586,163
Total Babilitles i P58,168,608 PI73,371,088 PE23 657014 14,258 964 PTET 493,684
COther segment information
Capital expenditures P99z, 231 PZ,882.817 P10,515, 705 1,350,958 P13,826,731
Deprociation and amorization P230,942 Pa6a6,560 P2,471,743 P314,436 P3,583,681
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2015

__FxCashline  WMFC Factors  WC Financing Others Vet _
Loans and Other Receivablas PI00.627 404  PIOS060385 P1,07T4681.884 Pi22533040 P1.404,113,602
Results of operation
Revenues
Interest Income P21,155.205 P,148,521 P174,244 436 PS,858,012 P11 417274
Cther income 1,607,058 2.578,232 15,687 B0 40 787, 135 60,660 228
22,773,263 11,726,853 189,532 239 4T 625 14T 272,077,502
Expenses
Interes: expense 4,164,511 2514,794 36,480,059 1,706,733 44 955 F3T7
Provision for credit losses 2,506.2T0 1,850,760 14,770,969 - 19,227 999
Cpearating expenses 4,380,847 1,718,527 158700857 0+ S Tasrmy
11,051,723 5,282,081 210,261,525 1,706,733 220,982 45T
Mat oparating income (laes) 11,721,535 5,444,772 (21,019,586) A5 36 414 42,085 035
Less: Income tax expanse {(benafit) 4 268,341 2,218,660 (11,925 241} 1,545,384 13,835 858)
Mt income (lass) F7.453,154 P3,225,112 (P5,081,445) Pa4 ze3 030 P45,580,831
Statemant of financizl positon
Tokaf assets Pas 132,578 P71.445.223 PA30,113,381  P255280804  P1.320965485
Total lisbilities PE4.681,910 PEE 038 BT PGED 476,339 P78, 808 B33 P00, 753,054
Ciher seoment information
Capital expandituras P - P - PET3.561 44,275 PT17.836
Depreciation and amartization P - P - Pi,021,3mM P1,393,602 P2415,193
— e gy e & 2n14 - —— _
- Fx Cash Line MEC Factors MG Financing Others = 1 Todal
Leans and Other Receivables PTT.834.119 PTE.T36,750 F1,040,772,261 P20 448448  P1,214, 791,578
Resulz of operation
Revenucs
Intensst incarme F21,455 935 P5405,388 P18g,802,556 3,531,643 P220.193,623
Dther incoma 1,785,503 5,167,238 803,224 40,172,568 55,138 621
241 528 10,570,627 197,815,880 43,704,211 275,332 245
Expenses
Interest expanss 3,454,545 2,731,298 43,538,055 B4T 255 50,571,235
Provision for credit losses 4074310 260,540 13,108,119 - 17,443 569
Ciperating expenses 7094235 4088306 157634009 785,160 166,912,721
14,623,692 4,320,062 214280317 1,653,455 234,527,526
Met operating income: {loss) 3617835 5,150,565 (16,464,437 42,070,756 40,404,720
_ Less: Incoma tEx expense (benafit) _2 5B6 351 1,854,189 (7.284, 384} 1,564,505 {1,250,459)
Net incarme (lese) PE, 032,485 P4,328,505 (P9.178,553) 40,505,851 P41,685 174
Statement of financial position
Tedal assels P54 148,192 P35,048 544 Po42,085 655 Pvag 503,928 P1,280,168,312
Total liabilities. 36,502 045 P37.606,545 PEBS 442 330 P140,577418 PEB0 E19,232
Cther segment Informatian
LCapital expenditures F - P - o= P - P -
Depreclation and amotization Fe,051 P1,838 P1.252.470 P1,256.787 P2517.144
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8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

bk _ Note _ 2016 2015
Cash equivalents 21  P74,554,022 P -
Cash in banks 22,246,834 17,282 619
Cash on hand 816,785 1,123,500

P97.617.641 P18,406,119

Cash equivalents include short-term placements with AIB with maturities from three
(3) to twelve (12) days at 3.4% interest per annum. Interest income on cash
equivalents amounted to PO 26 million and nil in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cash in banks eamn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates which ranges from
0.02% to 0.25% per annum in 2016 and 0.02% to 0.56% per annum in 2015,
respectively. Interest income on cash in banks amounted to P0.03 million and
P0.04 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

9. Loans and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

e s _ Note 2016 2015
Receivable from customers:

Consurmer P1.,070,647,942 P1,143,919.767
Services 221,229,632 206,887 870
Other receivables 21 19,773,053 17,306,057

Dividend receivable L 21 W - 36,000,000
1,311,650,627 1,404,113,694
Unearned interest income {337,437,669) (368,598,332)
Client's equity {32,577,544) {31,818,1186)

Allowance for credit losses (92,612,141) (55,912 524)

P849,023,273 P947,784,722

The classes of receivable from customers are subdivided according to loans granted
to different industries.

)



Loans and receivables according to product type:

LIL IS : SR — Note 2016 2015
Motorcycle financing P895,162,741 P1,065,245 505
Receivables purchased 108,591,813 106,060,386
Rx cash line - 111,172,314 100,052,367
Business loans sy 1 166,837,270 69,227,883

1,281,764,138  1,340,586,141
Unearned interest income (337,437.669) (368,598,332)
_Client's equity _(32,577,544) (31,818,1186)
911,748,925 940,169,693
Accrued interest receivable 10,113,436 10,221,486
Sales contract receivable 205,064 205,064
Advances to officers and employees 632,061 517,655
Due from affiliates 101,007 101,007
Miscellaneous receivables 21 13,834,921 16,482,331
Dividend receivable 21 - 36,000,000

941,635,414 1,003,697 246
(92,612.141)  (55.912.524)

P849,023,273 PO47,784,722

_Allowance for credit losses

Dividend receivable pertains to the dividends declared by AIB in October 2015 and
received by the Company in April 2016 amounting to P36.00 million. AIB has no
dividend declarations in 2016.

Miscellaneous receivables consist of receivables from employees resulting from
Company loans, other related parties and other non-related parties.

Client's equity represents the amount withheld by the Company as protection against
customer returns and allowances and other special adjustments, which is equivalent
to 30.00% of the receivables factored.

Interest rates on loans receivable ranges from 1.2% to 2.6% add-on rate per month
plus gross receipts tax. Interest income earmed from receivable from customers
amounted to P209.20 million and P211.41 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Movements in allowance for credit losses follow:

. December 31, 28
- RECENANE inomt Cislomiers
_Construction Services Consumer Others _ Total
Al Januany 1 P2,793.048 P5482,703  P46,687,T67 Fa43.000 P55912,524
Prewisiom: during the year - 8,225,600 26,258,203 2215814  36E99E1T
At December 3 P2,793,048 P13,708,309 PT2945 870 P3,164,514 PI2512,141
Total impament PZ,733,048 P13,708,309 PT2945 570 P3,164,814  PI2512,141

December 31, 2015

Receivable from Gustomers
__ Construction Sanices  Consumer Others  Total
AL January 1 Po42 288 P2576,435%  P31516,738 P245,000  P35,524,5625
_ Provisions during the year 1,950,780 2.506.270 14770968 - 19207999
At December 31 P2,703,048 PS482709  P4EBET 75T P848,000 P55912,524
Tatal mparment F2,793,042 P 482708 P46, GET TEY P845000  P55912.524
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December 31, 2014

_ _ Receivable from Gustomers
e _ Construction Servicee Consumer Chthers Total
At January 1 P581,745 P2776,062  P29.866.278 PS40,000  P34,173.089
Provisions during the year 260,539 4074510 13,108,120 2 17,443 569
Recoveries - - 18,790,320 . 18,790,820
Wiriteof | - {3.874,533)  (29.848.420) - [33722953)
At December 31 Pa42 738 P25TE 439 P31,0187%8 P345,000  P35,584,525
Total impairment PR42,288 F2,O78430 P31,215798 Po43000  P38684,525

In determining the allowance for credit losses on loans and receivable, the Company
also considered the provisioning requirements of Republic Act (R.A) No. 8556,
The Financing Company Act.

Under Section 9 of R.A. 8556, a 100% allowance for probable loss should be set up
for the following:

a) Clean loans and advances past due for a period of more than six (8) months;

b) Past due loans secured by collateral such as inventories, receivables, equipment
and other chattels that have declined in value by more than 50% without
the borrower offering additional collateral for the loans;

c) Past due loans secured by real estate mortgage title to which is subject to
an adverse claim rendering settlement through foreclosure doubtful;

d) When the borrower, and his co-maker or guarantor, is insolvent or where their
whereabouts is unknown, or their earning power is permanently impaired:

e) Accrued interest receivable that remain uncollected after six (6) months from
the maturity date of such loans to which it accrues: and

f) Accounts receivable past due for 361 days or more.

The Company's recorded provisions are in compliance with the provisioning
requirements set out by R.A. No. 8556.

11} _Investment in an Associate

This account consists of investment in 20% and 36% shares of stock of AIB as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively:

Note: 2916 = 2345,
Cost at the beginning of the year P75,000,000 P75,000,000
_Shares sold (16%) I (33333333) === -
Cost at the end of the year 41,666,667 75,000,000
Accumulated equity in net earnings
Balance at the beginning of the
year 48,089,357 79,302,222
Share in net income 21 47,222,206 40,787,135
Dividends 21 - (72,000,000)
Shares sold _(42,016,140) .
Balance at the end of the year 53,295,423 48,089,357

P94,962,090  P123,089.357
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in a BOD resolution dated October 27, 2018, a committee was formed and
authorized to negotiate, and enter into agreements, including but not limited to
contract to sell, deeds of assignment, and such other documents, for the sale of
the shares of stock of AIB owned by the Company, under such terms and conditions
as may be mutually acceptable to the parties. On December 19, 2016, the Company
transferred, assigned and conveyed 4.80 million (16%) shares of stocks of AIB, with
a par value of P10.00 per share, for an aggregate par value of P48.00 million, in
favor of AlB, for and in consideration of a total purchase price of P159.98 million or
P33.33 per share which resulted to a gain of P84.63 million (see Note 21). The
related capital gains tax amouniing to P12.00 million was accrued as at

December 31, 2016 (see Note 15).

The following illustrates the summarized financial information of AlB:

a1 oo | et = 2016 2015
Total assets F2,309,304,217 P4.822108,958
Total liabilities o 1,801,390,540  4,170,398,520

507,913,677 651,710,438
MNet unrealized gain on the Company's shares
held and classified by AIB as AFS financial
assets (195,985,211)  (308,128,392)
311,928,466 343,582,046

_Proportion of the Company’s ownership 20% 3%
Company’s share of AlB's net assets P62,385,693 P123,689,537
Income P320,871,726 P295,824 997
Expenses 174,734,019 168,821,566
Income before income tax 146,137,707 127,003,431

_ Provision for income tax 13,013,810 13,705,835
MNet income P133,117,897 P113,297 596
Share in net income

369%* P46,346,911 P40,787,135

_ 200%™ B75295 00000 -

Total share in net income P47,222.206 P40,787,135

*36% from January 1, 2076 fo December 158, 2016
“20% from December 20, 2078 to Decembser 31, 20716

Share in net income in 2015 represents 36% ownership. In 2016, share in net
income represents 36% ownership until date of sale and 20% ownership subsequent

to the sale until year-end.
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11. Property and Equipment

The roliforward analysis of this account follows:

P535,582

2018 i
Fumiture, Leasehold
Fixtures and Rights and Transportation
Equipment Improvements _Equipment Total
Cost
At January 1 P10,151,694 P1,424.681 P4,854,746 P16,431,121
Additions 4295452 6,052,159 5,473,120 15,826,731
_ Disposals - - (1,810,470) (1,810,470}
At December 31 14,447 146 7.476,840 8,523,396  30,447.382
Accumulated
Depreciation
and Amortization
At January 1 8,908,721 889,093 2,779,560 12,577,380
Depreciation and
amortization 1,784,748 904,337 1,094,596 3,683,681
_ Disposals - - (637511)  (637,511)
At December 31 10,693,469 1,693,436 3,236,645 15,623,550
Carrying Amount P3, 753677 P5,783,404 P5,286,751 P14,823,832
201
Furniture, Leasshold
Fixtures and Rights and  Transportation
Equipment  Improvements  Equipment Total
Cost
At January 1 P8672,749 F1,383,237 P4.650,299 P15,713,285
Additions 471,945 41 444 204,447 717,836
Disposals 2 = - -
At December 31 10,151 694 1,424,681 &4 B54 T46 16,431,121
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
At January 1 7348381 594 959 2118847 10,162,187
Depreciation and
amortization 1,660,340 194,140 660,713 2415193
Disposals # 2 Zn AR P L B
At December 31 8,808,721 889,099 2,778,560 12577380
Carrying Amount P1,242 973 P2,075,186 P3,853,741

Motorcycle inventories are transferred to transportation equipment when these are
used in the business operations by the employees (see Note 13). The transportation
eguipment is valued at the inventory’s carrying amount. In 2016 and 2015,
the Company transferred motorcycle inventories amounting to P0.67 million and
P0.16 million, respectively (shown as additions). In 2016, the Company transferred
from transportation equipment to motorcycle inventories amounting to P0.96 million

{shown as disposals).

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has fully depreciated property and
equipment that are still in use with original cost amounting to P2.28 million and

P1.75 million, respectively.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no property and equipment pledged

as collateral for liabilities,



44 Ih";éns-t'ﬁieﬁf-ﬁlrcperties - net

This account consists of cost of land:

- 1w ~ 2016 2015

i o _ - P3,544,001 P3,544,001
Allowance for impairment losses

‘Balance at beginning of the year _ (939,633)  (939,533)

Balance at end of the year {938,533) (939,533)

P2,604,468 P2,604.468

The aggregate fair value of the investment properties of the Company amounted to
P4.33 miilion as at December 31, 2016 and 2015. No sale of investment property
occurred in 2016 and 2015. The fair value of the Company’s investment properties
was estimated on the basis of recent sales of similar properties in the same areas
taking into account the economic conditions prevailing at the time the valuations
were made. The unit of comparison applied by the Company is the price per square
meter. The fair value of the investment properties is based on Level 2 hierarchy.

Direct operating expensas with regard to the investment properties pertain to local
property taxes amounting to P2,906 and P1,171 in 2016 and 2015 reported under
‘Taxes and licenses' in the statements of comprehensive income.

No income was generated relating to these investment properties in 2016 and 2015.

13. Other Assets - net

This account consists of;

| ~ Note 2016 2015
Motorcycle inventories 11  P103,177,184 P191,205,760
Prepaid expenses 3,722,630 3,119,237
Security deposits 3,384,627 1,064,245
Software costs 484,122 467 633
Other investments 80,000 80,000

P110,848,563 P195936,875

Motorcycle inventories pertain to repossessed units from the Company's motorcycle
financing business carried at the lower of cost or its net realizable value. These units
are intended for immediate resale. Loss from sale and write-down of motorcycle
inventories included in profit or loss amounted to P104.70 million, P44.00 million and
P48.73 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.



The movements in software costs follow:

o 2016 2015
Cost
At January 1 P4,523,179 P4,362,136
_ Additions 346,817 161,043
At December 21 4,869,996 4523179
Accumulated Amortization
At January 1 4,055,546 3,660,588
Amortization for the year 330,328 394,958
Accumulated amortization 4,385,874 4,055,545
At December 31 P484,122 P487 633
1 4_N_ntes Payable ) \C - -
This account consists of:
Note 2016 2015
Related parties 21 P413,106,895 P563,153.363
Banks 288,379,563 270,096,103
Individuals 3 9,700,000 10,000,000
P711,186,458 PB843,249 465

Interest rates from borrowings range from 4.00% to 6.75% per annum in 2016 and
2015.

Interest expense on these notes payable amounted to P44.98 million and
P44 .87 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Notes payable to related parties and individuals are unsecured, with maturity of up to
one (1) year. Notes payable to banks are secured, with maturity of up to three (3)
years.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the notes payable to banks were secured by
certain motorcycle financing receivables. Under the agreements with the bank
creditors, the notes payable are subject to Deed of Assignment on summary list of
loans receivable (with 50% to 85% loanable value) on a per availment basis.

The following assets were used to secure the notes payable to banks availed by the

Company:
o 2‘015 2015
Carrying Secured Carrying Secured
__1__ Amount _ Notes ____Amount Motes
Motorcycle financing P377,519,712  P288,379,563 P359,482,391 P270,098,104

e



15, Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

= Note MG 2015

Accrued capital gains tax 10 P11,995,000 P -
Accrued interest 21 11,194,105 16,001,297
Accrued taxes 3,769,612 2,958,189
Accrued occupancy costs 3,327,362 286,496
Accrued management and professional

fees ; 2,084,266 3,757,849
Accrued administrative expenses 893,428 2,765,436
Accrued insurance payable 553,332 508,425
Others - 3,733,013 2287219

P37,550,118 P28,565,011

Others include accrual on 888, Pag-ibig and Philheath payable.

16. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabiliies of the Company
analyzed according to whether they are expected to be recovered or settled within
one year and beyond one year from the reporting date.

216 2015
Loss than Creer 12 Loss than Creer 12
12 Montha Months Total 1ZMonths onthe Taoml
Financial Assets
Cash ano cash equivalents PaT BT 841 P - PaT E17,541 18,406 115 P - P16,406 119
Leans and cthar
recevEDles - gross 745,661,526 E£55,998,701 1,311,850 627 8003B, 185 P59S 075,508 1,404,113,684
__(Qrher azzols 2 - 1458827 X 0 1144245 4144245
853,269,557 550,463,228 1412,732,805 823 444 204 597,218,754 1,423 5854 058
Monfinaneial Assats '
Irvastmeant in an sssecite - 04,302, 080 94,962,090 - 123,089,357 123,085,357
Proparty and equipmeand - 14,823,532 14, BN B0 - 385370 3 BEA T4
Imvesstment propertes -
aross " 3,544,000 3,544,001 - 3,544,001 3,544,001
Defarred tax assets - 57,706,296 57,706,296 - 29,220,203 25290203
_Otner assets Rk 484,122 107,383,536 194,374.996 467,634 184 752 530
105,995,514 171,520,341 2THA20,155 194,374 956 160,244,935 354,560 502
Less, Allowancs for cradit
ard iparment lasses - {93,551,674) {33,551,674) . (56,852.057) {56,852 05T
Unesrmed irdenesd
income [220,762,654) {116,685,115) [337,437,655) [42E38541) [325,738.681) [368,588,137)
Client's qu'{ — (32,577.544) i = (32,577 544) (31,E18,118) Jrris 31,818,116}
[253,320,008) (210,325,789 [#53,566,887) (T4 676757 (382,501,748 (457,264, 505)

PT0E,E39,203 PE20, 745,350 P1,237 5BE 163 F945.082,543  P374 872542  P1320,955485

Financial Liabilities

Mofes payabin . Pé91,185,458 P20,000,500 Pr11,186458  PTSE 954228  PE7.005.238 P243 245,455
Arounts payatle 15,717,736 - 18,747,788 I7 570 455 - 27,970,455
_Ancruad intarest 11434008 - 11,184,105 16,001.797 s 16,001,287
718,098,351 20,000,000 738,088,351 800, 126,024 BT 085,238 BET,ZH 252
Nonfinancial Liabdlitas

Accrued ExpenEes 26,356,013 - 26,356,013 12,563,714 - 12,583,714
Ratiramant kabiy - 1,549,370 1,549,370 - &13,221 61321

_ lreome tx payaske 1,438,950 I g 1,489,950 358 757 - . O55757
27,845,963 1,548,370 29,395,333 12,919,471 B13,221 13,532,832

P745,944 314 F21,549,370 PTET 493 604 PE13,045 485 PET 708 455 P00, 753,054
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17. Equity

On July 28, 2016, the BOD and stockholders approved the declaration of 3.29%
stock dividends in the amount of P6,897,073 to stockholders of record as of
August 26, 2016 with distribution date not later than September 21, 2016. On the
same date, the BOD also approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P6,897,133. Fractional shares related to this declaration were settled in cash with a
total amount of P&1.00.

On July 30, 2015, the BOD and stockholders approved the declaration of 3.08%
stock dividends in the amount of P6,252,710 to stockholders of record as of
August 27, 2015 with distribution date not later than September 22, 2015. On the
same date, the BOD also approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P8,252,777. Fractional shares related to this declaration were settled in cash with a
total amount of P67.00.

On July 31, 2014, the BOD and stockholders approved the declaration of 1.73%
stock dividends in the amount of P3,465,553 to stockholders of record as of
August 28, 2014 with distribution date not later than September 23, 2014. On the
same date, the BOD also approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P3.465,588. Fractional shares related to this declaration were sattled in cash with a
total amount of P36.00.

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has 216,462,556 common shares issued
and outstanding which were owned by 103 shareholders.

The movements in the number of issued shares and capital stock follow:

2016 2015 2074
MNumber MNumbes Number
= of Shares Amount  ofShares ~  Amount  Of Shares hmgunt_
Autiorized - 300,000,000
charag, P1 par value

Al January 1 209,565 483 P205,565483 203312773 P203,312,773 199,847.220 P159,847 220
Stock dividends 5,897,073 5,897,073 B8.252.710 E.252710 3465553 3,485,553
At Decembear 31 216,462,556 P216,462 556 200, 565483 P202,5565,483 203,312,773 P203.312.773

On January 21, 2016, the BOD of AIB resolved to approve the block sale of 25%
(52,391,311) common shares of MFC at P1.40 per share to Motor Ace
Philippines, Inc. This was approved by the PSE and executed on May 13, 2016.

The block sale effectively reduced AlB's ownership of the company from 69.42% to
42.46% as at December 31, 2016.

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policies and
procedures are to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Company considers its total equity as capital. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes in 2016.

o



Under R.A. No. 8556, the Company is required to maintain the following capital
requirements:

(a) minimum paid-up capital of P10.00 million; and

(b) additional capital requirements for each branch of P1.00 million for branches
established in Metro Manila, P0.50 million for branches established in other
classes of cities and P0.25 million for branches established in municipalities.

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company was in compliance
with the minimum paid-up capital.

The Company is compliant with the minimum public float of 10% that is required by
the PSE where the Company’s shares are traded.

The Company's retained eamings representing the accumulated share in the net
income of an associate amounting to P53.30 million and P48.09 million as at

December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, is not available for declaration as
dividend.

1 B._ hetirement Plan

The Company has a funded, tax-gualified defined benefit plan covering all its officers
and regular employees. The benefits are based on years of service and
compensation on the last year of service.

The Company is subject to the minimum retirement benefit under the RA. 7841,
‘The Philippine Retirement Law’, which provides for retirement pay to qualified
employees in the absence of any retirement plan. R.A. 7641 requires the Company
to provide minimum retirement benefits to employees who have reached the age of
sixty (60) years or more, but not beyond sixty-five (65) years which is considered as
the compulsory retirement age, and who have served at least five (5) years in
the Company.

The plan is non-conifributory and of the defined benefit type which provides a
retirement benefit equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the latest monthly salary
for every year of credited service. Benefits are paid in lump sum upon retirement or
separation in accordance with the terms of the plan. Normal retirement age is at
age 60.

Net benefit cost is included in the Company's profit or loss under ‘Salaries and
employee benefits.'
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The amounts of retirement benefit reserve recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income follow:

=l _ L 2016 2015
Components of retirement benefit liability
recorded in profit or loss as retirement
benefit expense
Current service cost P2,117,250 P1,969,369
Met interest expense;
Interest expense 320,352 226,123
Interest income on plan assets (290,366) (257.210)
Interest expense on effect of asset ceiling : 1,336
2,147,236 1,939,618
Components of retirement benefit liability
recorded in OCI
Remeasurement gain on defined benefits
obligation (1,184,373} (680,475)
Remeasurement loss (gain) on plan assets (26,714} 47 760
Remeasurement gain on the change in the
effect of asset ceiling oL By __(31,087)
(1,211,087) (663,802)
Total compenents of retirement benefit liability FP936,149 P1.275,816

The net retirement benefit liability recognized in the statements of financial position
follows:

gt W o e = 0] ) 2016 2015
Present value of retirement benefits obligation P7.804,403 P6,551,174
_Fair value of plan assets (6,255,033) (5,937,953)
Net defined benefit liability P1,549,370 P613,221

The movements of the present value of retirement benefits obligation of the
Company follow:

L 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P6,551,174 P5,036,157
Current service cost 2,117,250 1,969,369
Interest expense 320,352 226,123
Remeasurement gains on obligation arising
from:
Change in financial assumptions (543,030) (386,800)
Experience adjustment =S (641,343) {293,675)
Ealance at end of year P7,804,403 P6,551,174

The movements of the fair value of plan assets of the Company follow:

o 15 | _ _ 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P5,937,953 P5,728,503
Interest income 290,366 257,210

~Remeasurement loss on plan assets . 28,714 _ (47.760)
Balance at end of year P6,255,033 P5,937,953
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The changes in the effect of asset ceiling are as follows:

== 1 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P - P29,751
Remeasurement (gain) on the change in
the effect of asset ceiling - {31,087)
Interest expense on effect of asset
ceiling B - 1,336
Balance at end of year P - P -

Changes in the retirement benefit liability follow:

B - 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P613,221 (P662,595)
Current service cost 2,117,250 1,969,369
Net interest cost on the retirement liability 29,986 (31,087)
Remeasurement loss (gain) on plan assets (26,714) 47 760
Actuanal gains on retirement liability arising from:

Experience adjustment (641,343) {293,675)
Changes in assumptions (543,030) (386,800)

_Changes in the effect of asset ceiling P (28,751)

Balance at end of year P1,549,370 P613,221

The maximum economic benefit available is a combination of expected refunds from
the plan and reductions in future contributions.

The fair values of plan assets by each class as at the end of the reporting period
follow:

B N - | JE—— .
Cash and cash equivalents P200,725 P816,520
AFS financial assets 5,049,688 4,828,743
Accrued and other receivables 304,620 192,390
P6,255,033 P5,937.953

All debt instruments held have quoted prices in active market. The remaining plan
assets do not have quoted market prices in active market.

In 2016 and 2015, the cash and cash equivalent and AFS financial assets have high
grade credit quality while accrued and other receivable have standard credit quality.

The cost of defined benefit plans and other post-employment medical benefits as
well as the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. The
principal assumptions used in determining pension and post-employment medical
benefit obligations for the defined benefit plans are shown below:

. danuary1

el = ROIG . 2000
Discount rate 5.38% 4.89%
Future salary increases 5.00% 5.00%

_Average remaining working life (inyears) . 284 29.1

-40 -



Assumptions for mortality and disability rate are based on the adjusted 1994 Group
Annuity Mortality Table in which separate rates were used for males and females
and the 1952 Disability Study of the US Society for Actuaries adjusted to suit local
experience.

There were no changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant assumption on
the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period, assuming if all
other assumptions were held constant:

Increase  Increase (decrease) in
(decrease) in present value of
basis peoints obligation
Discount rates +100 basis point (P866,640)
-100 basis point 1,015,121
Salary increase rates +100 basis point 934,531
__-100basispoint (820,757)

The Company does not expect to contribute to the defined benefit plan in 2017,

The Company is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under
the retirement plan before they become due.

The plan assets’ concentration risks are limited to financial services.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan at the end of the reporting date is

15.9 years.

19. Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous income consists of the following items:

N LN 2016 .25 2014
Penalties P11,735,907 P12,049.746 P10,402,716
Recoveries 6,812,744 3,150,287 3,190,667
Others 9410 97,705 71,297

P18,644,061 P15,297,738 P13,664,680
Miscellaneous expenses consist of the following items:

- R ;i S - 2014
Communication P2,837,607 P1,979,600 P2.160,189
Insurance 2,494,214 1,914,363 2,056,586
Stationeries and supplies 1,653,120 1,823,387 3,898,197
Repairs and maintenance 623,579 500,767 336,891
Meetings and conferences 518,330 210,934 370,938
Training and development 201,748 148,118 175,990

_Others : 746,016 797,226 ~_BB65,876
P9,074,614 P7,374,395 F9,664,667

Other expenses include advertising costs, donations, membership dues and other

miscellaneous expenses.

it | [0



20. Income Taxes

Current tax regulations provide that the RCIT rate is 30%. The regulations also
provide for MCIT of 2% on modified gross income and allow NOLCO. The MCIT and
MOLCO may be applied against the Company's income tax liability and taxable
income, respectively, over a three-year period from the year of incurrence.

The components of the Company's income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended

December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 follow:

. 2016 2015 2014
Current:
MCIT P2,833,371 P - P -
RCIT - 3,811,044 7,148,309
Deferred {29,180,987) (7,706,900) (8,428,768)
(P26,347,616) (P3,8958568) (P1,280,459)
The components of deferred tax assets follow:
s 2016 2015 2014
Deferred tax assets on:
Allowance for impairment and
credit losses P27,783,642 P18,773,757 P11,005,357
Inventory write-down of
motorcycle 19,302,690 13,216,668 11,245,415
NOLCO 11,135,654 - -
Accrued expenses 881,160 - -
Past service cost 80,095 111,839 143,582
59,283,241 30,102,254 22,395,354
Deferred tax liabilities on:
Remeasurement gain on
defined benefit obligation 1,576,945 812,051 1,082,654
P57,706,296 P29,290,203 P21,312,700

The Company incurred a NOLCO of P37.12 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016. This will be carried over as a deduction from taxable income
and will expire after the year ending December 31, 2019,

The Company did not recognize deferred tax asset on the MCIT amounting to

P2.83 million as at December 31, 2016.
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The reconciliation of the statutory income tax to the effective income tax follows:

L 2016 2015 2014
Income before income tax P19,984,333 P42.085,035 P40,404,720

Income tax computed at

statutory rate (30%) P5,995,300 P12,625,511 P12,121,416
Additions to {reduction in)

income tax resulting from the

tax effects of:
Nondeductible expense 4,089,080 1,296,305 -
MNon-deductible interast

expense 35,467 4 747 4,085

Interest income subjected to
final tax and dividend

income (85,982) (11,507) (9,903)

Tax exempt income and
nontaxable income (39,621,496) (12,236,141) {11,863,615)
_ Others 3,240,015 (5.574.771) (1,532,442)
Effective income tax benefit (P26,347,616) (P3,895,856) (P1,280.459)

Interest allowed as deductible expense is reduced by an amount equivalent to
33.00% of interest income subjected to final tax.

F.A. No. 9504, An Act Amending National Intermal Revenue Code, provides that,
the optional standard deduction (OSD) equivalent to 40.0% of gross income may be
claimed as an alternative deduction in computing for the RCIT. The Company
elacted to claim itemized expense deductions instead of OSD.

in addition, current tax regulations provide for the ceiling on the amount of
entertainment, amusement and recreation (EAR) expenses that can be claimed as a
deduction against taxable income. Under the regulations, EAR expenses allowed as
deductible expense is limited to the actual EAR paid or incurred but not to exceed
1.00% of the gross revenue of a company engaged in the sale of services. EAR
expenses amounted to P0.61 million, P0.24 million and P1.74 million in 2016, 2015
and 2014, respectively.
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a. This includes various receivables from the Parent Company and other related
parties pertaining to availment of comprehensive insurance and other claims for
reimbursement.

b. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, notes payable and accrued interest payable
arising from borrowings from stockholders amounted to P413.11 million and
P563.15 million, respectively, and P7.81 million and P12.42 million, respectively.
Interest expense from these borrowings amounted to P32.37 million and
P36.52 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 14).

Borrowings availed from related parties amounted to P88.47 million and
P53.05 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Settlement from borrowings
amounted to P236.52 million and P206.27 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Interest rates from borrowings range from 5.5% to 10% and from 5.5% to 6.25%
in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Borrowings from related parties are unsecured
and to be settled in cash.

c. Share in net income of an associate is the share of the Company in the net
income of its associate (see Note 10).

d. Gain on sale of AlB shares resulted from the buy-back transaction of AIB of its
own 4.8 million shares with a cost of P33.33 million and accumulated equity in
net earnings of P42.02 million, for a total purchase price of P159.98 million
{see Note 10).

e. In 2016, the Company had short-term placements with AIB amounting to
P600.71 million. As at December 31, 2016, P74.55 million of these placements
remain outstanding. Interest income from these placements amounted to
P0.26 million and nil in 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 8).

f.  Accounts payable represents billings for motorcycle units sold by the related
parties that are financed by the Company.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel
consist of short-term benefits amounting to P17.07 million and P15.64 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively, included in the ‘Salaries and employee benefits' and
‘Management and professional fees’ account in the statements of comprehensive
income.

22, Earnings Per ShammeIf’E]_

EPS amounts were calculated as follows:

) ] L] 2016 2015
a. Netincome P46,331,949 P45,980,891
b. Weighted average number of

____outstanding common shares ) 216,462,556 209,565,483
¢. Basic/diluted earnings per share (a/b) P0.21 P0.22

The weighted average number of outstanding common shares in 2018 and 2015 was
recomputed after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared on
July 28, 2016, July 30, 2015, and July 31, 2014, however, the impact to the EPS was
immaterial (see Note 17).
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23. Lease Commitment

The Company entered into a new lease confract for a period of five (5) years starting
from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2021, Total rent expense included under
‘Occupancy cost’ account in the statements of comprehensive income, incurred in
2016 and 2015 amounted to P14.89 million and P7.14 million, respectively.

The aggregate future minimum lease payments for the lease commitments are as

follows:
- [ 2016 2015
Less than one year F8,336,109 P7,360,000
Between one and five years 24,795,708 3,577,728

P33,631,817Y  P10,937,728

_2;1.- _Supplementary Information Re::luiréd bythe Bureau of [ntem_al' REVMB[_R} =

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards
andfor conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information
for the taxable year. The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily
be the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were
prepared in accordance with PFRSs.

The following are the tax information reguired for the taxable year ended
December 31, 2016 based on Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010:

A. Other Taxes and Licenses
This includes all other taxes, local and national, including real estate taxes,

licenses, and permit fees lodged under ‘Taxes and licenses’ account in the
Company's statement of comprehensive income, Details for year 2016 consist of

the following:
Capital gains tax (CGT) _ P11,995,000
Gross receipts tax (GRT) 11,615,294
Documentary stamp tax (DST) on loan instruments 4,280,124
License and permitfees 2,443.618
P30,334,036

As at December 31, 2016, accrued CGT, GRT and DST amounted to
F11.99 million, P1.13 million and P0.3 million, respectively.

B. Withholding taxes

Details of the withholding taxes as at December 31, 2016 follow:

Expanded withholding taxes i P10,206,603
Withnholding taxes on compensation and benefits | 6,489,747

P16,696,350
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C. Tax Cases
Asg at December 31, 2016, the Company has no pending tax court cases.
D. Tax Assessment
Asg at December 31, 20168, the Company has no pending tax assessment.
The Company received a Letter of Authority no. eLAZ01100080446 from BIR in
August 2015 to examine the books of accounts and other accounting records for

the tax period ended December 31, 2014. In 2016, the Company setiled the
assessment with the BIR.
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